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ERIE COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
May 5, 2021 

 
 

 
To: Terrence D. McCracken, Secretary to the Authority 
 
Cc: Margaret A. Murphy, General Counsel 
 Karen A. Prendergast, Chief Financial Officer 
 Russell J. Stoll, Chief Operating Officer 
 Lavonya Lester, Director of Administration 
 
From: Leonard Kowalski, Executive Engineer 
 Michael J. Quinn, Senior Distribution Engineer 
 
Subject: City of Buffalo Interconnection 

Hancock Tank Site  
ECWA Project No. 202000310 

  

Over the past several months, the Erie County Water Authority (Authority) has been working with 
the City of Buffalo Division of Water (City) to enhance the current network of interconnections 
between the two systems to make the provision of water more sustainable as well as to provide a 
supplemental supply to the ECWA system in periods of high demand or for emergencies.  
Currently there are several interconnections between the two systems but only one, located at Lang 
Avenue and Texas Street in the City that is large enough to provide the needed flow to serve a 
large portion of the Authority system.  The other interconnections essential supply individual 
neighborhoods.   

Through the use of the hydraulic model, a second potential large interconnection was identified 
near the City of Buffalo’s Hancock Storage Tank located on Dorrance Avenue in South Buffalo.  
Should an interconnection at this location prove effective, the ECWA model suggests that 
supplemental flow could potentially provide for an emergency supply as far into the ECWA as the 
Windom Tank/Pump Station site which could effectively assist with supplying the system during 
reduced output from Sturgeon Point Treatment Plant.  Under a consulting contract with the City 
of Buffalo, Nussbaumer and Clarke completed a preliminary assessment of the City system to 
ensure that an adequate amount (minimum of 10 MGD) of water would be available at the Hancock 
site and under what conditions.  The results of this study suggest that this level of flow would be 
available under most conditions.  Recognizing the potential of this interconnection, a more detailed 
analysis is necessary to determine under what specific conditions in both the City and ECWA 
systems water could or more importantly could not be available as well as to identify any needed 
capital improvements to effectuate the interconnection.  Under normal conditions, the next step in 
the process would be to hire consultants to complete the evaluation for both the ECWA and the 
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City.  However, given the work completed to date by Nussbaumer and Clarke, the ECWA 
Engineering Department as well as engineers from the City would prefer to continue to use 
Nussabumer and Clarke for the balance of the evaluation.  Using this firm would allow the study 
to be completed in a much timelier fashion potentially allowing the capital improvements 
associated with the interconnection to be completed sooner as well.  In general, the scope of work 
for this project would be a more detailed hydraulic analysis of both the ECWA and City systems 
and developing a Basis of Design Report outlining the results of the analysis and the associated 
capital improvements.   

Due to the mutual benefits of this project, the ECWA and the City have been in discussions 
regarding a cooperative agreement and an even split on the cost of the next phase of the project 
with Nussbaumer and Clarke.  As outlined below, the City has in place a mechanism under which 
a variety of consultants have been prequalified for different engineering tasks.  In this instance, in 
addition to the work already completed, Nussbaumer and Clarke have been pre-selected for this 
type of project by the City.   According to representatives from the City, this pre-selection process 
is completed in two steps.  First, as detailed in Attachment A, the City completes a rigorous 
selection process whereby consultants are selected for a variety of service categories including the 
following: 

• System Storage, Booster and High Service Pump Stations; 
• Water Treatment Facilities; 
• Distribution System Services; 
• General Consulting; and  
• Buildings, Grounds and Facility Projects. 

Consultants are selected on the basis of the following criteria: 

• Project Expertise; 
• Staff Qualifications; 
• Location of Work; and  
• Rate Schedule. 

Each proposal is scored by a small committee of City staff and a list of consultants are selected 
from which proposals for future projects can be requested and projects completed.  As shown on 
the table included with Attachment A, Nussbaumer and Clarke were selected by the City for both 
System Storage and Distribution Projects.   Once a consultant is selected, the City completes a 
second step which documents to the City Division of Audit why a specific consultant was selected 
for an assignment.  Attachment B includes a draft memo from the Principal Engineer of the 
Division of Water to the Division of Audit specifically discussing the selection of Nussbaumer 
and Clarke.  Note that the ECWA Engineering Department concurs with the rational outlined 
therein.  In addition to this selection process, our experience with Nussbaumer and Clarke has been 
excellent as it relates to the potential scope of work for this project.  Currently they are completing 
a large raw water transmission main design at the Van de Water Treatment Plant (Contract NC-
040), a transmission system design in the City of Lackawanna and the town of West Seneca 
(Contract NC-041) and the design of a new pumping system at the Newstead Pump Station 
(Contract NC-042).  The related experience that afforded the selection of Nussbaumer and Clarke 
for these projects is pertinent to the interconnection project making them in our opinion the right 
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choice for this assignment.   

Based on the information presented above, the Engineering Department and City Engineering Staff 
would like to move forward with developing the final scope of services for the project including 
the associated engineering fees cost share model and working with the Legal Department to 
negotiate a cooperative agreement. 
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Memorandum 
 

From: Peter J. Merlo, P.E. 

 Principal Engineer 

 

To: Division of Audit 

 

Date: April 28, 2021 

 

Re: Division of Water / Buffalo Water Board  

Consultant Selection 

Interconnection Modeling - Nussbaumer & Clarke 

 

Nussbaumer & Clarke was selected off our Consultant list by Fouad Arab, Jack McMahon, and 

myself for several reasons, as identified below.  Once the consultant was selected, we negotiated 

the scope based on the unique requirements for the project and utilized the hourly billings rates 

that were already established per the selection process. 

 

Nussbaumer & Clarke was selected for several reasons: 

 

• This project is to evaluate the potential of another interconnection with the Erie County 

Water Authority (ECWA).  The project will be equally co-funded by both Buffalo Water 

Board and ECWA.  The Division of Water will take the lead and manage the contract and 

will seek reimbursement of ECWA’s share on behalf of the Water Board. 

• The goal of this project is to determine if another interconnection between the City of 

Buffalo System and ECWA’s is beneficial to both parties with no adverse effects.  

• This was discussed with ECWA’s staff and they also recommend we contract with 

Nussbaumer and Clarke for the reasons stated. 

• Nussbaumer & Clarke has a very good team and has extensive experience with water 

system modeling.  They developed the Water Model for the Division of Water and 

currently assists with our modeling requests.  They also have experience with ECWA’s 

water system.  

• They have performed very well and efficiently on the previous water system modeling 

development and update projects including extensive knowledge of our system.  This will 

minimize any learning curve which is very steep on this type of project which will result 

in significant efficiency. 

• We requested Nussbaumer & Clarke assign the same personnel to this project as have 

worked on similar Buffalo Water system modeling projects.   

• This fits in with their current workload. 

DRAFT 
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The selection team believes that this consultant chosen through this process provides the best 

value to the Water System.  We chose the firm that best meets the needs of the project.  This 

helps to meet the timetable required and meets our system needs. 

 

Thank you for your help in moving this contract forward. 

 

Cc: Jack McMahon, P.E., Associate Engineer 

 Fouad Arab, Senior Engineer 

 Oluwole McFoy, P.E., Buffalo Water Board Chairmen 

 ECWA 

 




